Master Agreement between the Board of Education of the

School District of the City of Pontiac

and

The Pontiac Educational Secretaries

Association / MEA/NEA

2022-2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1	PREAMBLE
ARTICLE 2	PURPOSE AND INTENT
ARTICLE 3	RECOGNITION STATEMENT
ARTICLE 4	DEFINITIONS
ARTICLE 5	BOARD RIGHTS
ARTICLE 6	ASSOCIATION SECURITY
ARTICLE 7	ASSOCIATION AND EMPLOYEE RIGHTS9
Section A	Association Rights9
Section B	Employee Rights
Section C	Payroll Deductions
Section D	Agreement Distribution
Section E	Job Description Committee12
Section F	Negotiation Committee
Section G	Site-Based Decision Making12
ARTICLE 8	PROBATION-SENIORITY-EVALUATION
Section A	Probation
Section B	Seniority
Section C	Evaluation13
ARTICLE 9	WORKDAY
Section A	Hours of Employment
Section B	Rest Periods
Section C	Lunch Period15
Section D	Temporary Work Situation15
Section E	Summer Work Schedule
Section F	Extended School Year16
ARTICLE 10	ASSIGNMENT-VACANCY16
Section A	Assignment16
Section B	Vacancy
ARTICLE 11	DISCIPLINE
ARTICLE 12	RESIGNATION

ARTICLE 13	HEALTH REQUIREMENTS
ARTICLE 14	RECLASSIFICATION
ARTICLE 15	STAFF REDUCTION AND RECALL
Section A	Staff Reduction
Section B	Displacement
Section C	Recall
ARTICLE 16	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE 17	STRIKE PROHIBITION
ARTICLE 18	PAID LEAVE
Section A	Sick Leave
Section B	Approved Leave Days27
Section C	Sick Leave Bank
Section D	Jury Duty
Section E	Emergency Closing of Schools
Section F	Bereavement
ARTICLE 19	LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY
Section A	Illness – Self or Family
Section B	Other Leaves
ARTICLE 20	ECONOMIC BENEFITS
Section A	Health Benefits
Section B	Health Insurance Option
Section C	Dental Benefits
Section D	Life Insurance
Section E	Long Term Disability Insurance
Section F	Vision Insurance
Section G	Liability Insurance
Section H	Vacations
Section I	Holidays*
Section J	Enrollment Factor
Section K	Severance Pay
Section L	Professional Growth

Section M	Clothing and Personal Property Damage	38
Section N	Overtime	38
Section O	Issuance of Paychecks	39
Section P	Mileage	39
Section Q	Supply Reimbursement	39
ARTICLE 21	SALARY SCHEDULE	39
Section A	Salary Schedule Procedures	39
Section B	Salary Schedule	39
Section C	Wage Schedule CHANGES	40
ARTICLE 22	DURATION OF THE AGREEMENT	40
APPENDIX A -	March 28, 2019 Tentative Agreement	42
APPENDIX B -	2022-2023 Lanes D, E, & F Salary Schedule	47
APPENDIX C -	- 2022-2023 Lane G Salary Schedule	49
APPENDIX D -	November 7, 2022 LOA – Summer School Assignment(s)	51
APPENDIX E -	November 7, 2022 LOA – Temporary Summer Work Assignment	53
APPENDIX F -	November 7, 2022 LOA – HR & Business Office PESA Positions	55
APPENDIX G -	November 7, 2022 LOU – Ratification Bonus	57
APPENDIX H -	November 7, 2022 LOU – District Positions Inclusion in PESA	59

MASTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC AND THE PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION

This Agreement is made and entered into this 7th day of November, 2022 by and between the Board of Education of the School District of the City of Pontiac, Michigan, hereinafter called the "BOARD" and the Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association, hereinafter called the "ASSOCIATION".

ARTICLE 1 PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the Board has a statutory obligation, pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965, to bargain with the Association as the representative of its secretarial and clerical personnel as recognized in this Agreement with respect to wages, hours of employment and terms and conditions of employment; and

WHEREAS, the Board formally recognized the Association as the representative bargaining agent for full time secretarial and clerical personnel on November 10, 1965; and

WHEREAS, the Board and the Association mutually agree to bargain in good faith with respect to wages, hours of employment and terms and conditions of employment;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual covenants, the Association and the Board hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 2 PURPOSE AND INTENT

The purpose of this Agreement is to promote orderly and harmonious relations for the mutual and equitable interest of the Board, the secretarial and clerical employees and the Association. The Board and the Association shall encourage to the fullest degree, friendly and cooperative relations between the respective representatives at all levels and among all employees. During the term of this Agreement, both parties agree to meet at the request of either party for the purpose of discussing any provision of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 3 RECOGNITION STATEMENT

Item 1 The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative for all full and part-time personnel engaged in secretarial and clerical work as defined later in this Agreement, but excludes the secretary to the Superintendent, secretary to the Office of the General Counsel, secretaries to the Deputy Superintendent, secretaries to the Assistant Superintendents (with the exception of the Employee Benefits Coordinator in the Human Resources Department), secretaries in the District's Business Office (with the exception of the Financial Accountant for Accounts Payable and the Financial Accountant for Accounts Receivables.), substitute secretarial and clerical employees, coops, and clerical aides. As it relates to PESA's positions in the Human Resources and Business Offices, PESA will have one position in Human Resources, currently the Benefits Coordinator. HR Generalists will be excluded from PESA. The work of the Benefits Coordinator may not be reassigned outside of PESA.

PESA will have two positions in the Business Office, currently Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable. Procurement and Payroll will be excluded from PESA. The work of Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable may not be assigned outside of PESA.

Should any restructuring, downsizing, layoffs, reassignment, or similar action occur, both parties agree to discuss workload distribution among the remaining PESA members in the Human Resources and Business Offices.

- Item 2 Any additional full time secretarial classification or new permanent position which is established during the term of this Agreement shall be subject to negotiations between the Board and the Association in respect to wages, hours of employment and conditions of employment.
- Item 3 Adjustments made in the present classification of positions currently in existence and negotiated as part of the Agreement shall be subject to review and mutual agreement with the Association before implementation.
- Item 4 For the duration of this Agreement, the Board agrees not to negotiate with any organization other than the Association representing the secretarial and clerical employees. The rights granted herein to the Association shall not be granted to or intended for use by any other organization.

ARTICLE 4 DEFINITIONS

- Item 1 When the term "Employee" is used, it shall mean all personnel represented by the Association in the bargaining unit.
- Item 2 When the term "Board" is used, it shall mean the School District of the City of Pontiac and shall include its designee upon whom the board has conferred authority to act in its place.
- Item 3 When the term "District" is used, it shall mean the School District of the City of Pontiac.
- Item 4 When the term "Superintendent" is used, it shall mean the Superintendent of Schools and shall include the designee upon whom the Superintendent has conferred authority to act for the Superintendent.
- Item 5 When the term "Appropriate Personnel Director" is used, it shall mean the Personnel Official who is responsible for secretarial personnel.
- Item 6 When the term "Association" is used, it shall mean the Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association and shall include its designee upon whom the Association has conferred authority to act in its place.

- Item 7 When the term "Association Representative" is used, it shall mean the official designated member of the Association to represent an individual or group of employees. The Association shall provide the Board with written notice of the official representatives.
- Item 8 When the term "Immediate Supervisor" is used, it shall mean the administrator assigned to the building, department or program of the employee's designated work area upon whom the Superintendent has conferred the authority to act for the Superintendent.
- Item 9 When the term "Conditions of Employment" is used, it shall mean the same as "terms and conditions of employment".

ARTICLE 5 BOARD RIGHTS

The Board reserves and retains, solely and exclusively, all rights to manage and direct its work forces, such as, the determination of policies, operations, assignment, schedules, discipline and layoffs for the orderly and efficient operation of the District except as limited or in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 ASSOCIATION SECURITY

- Item 1 Employees covered by this Agreement at the time it becomes effective who are members of the Association at that time shall be required as a condition of continued employment to continue membership in the Association for the duration of this Agreement. Membership dues shall be paid directly to the Association by October 1 for each current year. The current year shall be defined as ending June 30.
- Item 2 An employee hired after the effective date of this Agreement for a full time position shall be required as a condition of continued employment to become a member of the Association or pay a service fee equal to the amount of the Association membership dues for the duration of this Agreement. The employee shall pay dues or service fee to the Association by the tenth day after the completion of their probationary employment. Dues or service fee will be a proration of the annual dues or service fee based on the number of months remaining in the current year. The current year shall be defined as ending June 30.
- Item 3 An employee returning from a Leave of Absence, or a former employee rehired on a full time basis shall be required as a condition of employment to become a member of the Association or pay a service fee equal to the amount of the Association membership dues for the duration of this Agreement. The employee shall pay dues or service fee to the Association by the thirtieth day following the beginning of employment. Dues or service fee will be a pro-ration of the annual dues or service fee based on the number of months remaining in the current year. The current year shall be defined as ending June 30.
- Item 4 Employees shall meet the conditions of this Article as long as they are no more than thirty (30) days arrears in payment of dues or service fee. The Board shall be notified in

writing by the Association on November 1 of each current year of any employee covered in Item 1 of this Article if they are thirty (30) days in arrears of payment. The Board shall be notified in writing by the Association of employees covered in Items 2 or 3 of this Article if they are thirty (30) days in arrears of payment.

- Item 5 In the event an employee covered by Items 1, 2 and 3 of this Article does not join the Association or tender service fee to the Association by the requisite date as specified in Items 1, 2, 3 and 4 of this Article, the Board shall within five (5) workdays notify the employee that employment shall be terminated at the end of the tenth workday following the issuance of such notification, provided the Association has complied with the following:
 - 5.1 Fulfilled the requirements of Item 4 of this Article.
 - 5.2 Fulfilled its fiduciary obligations by sending written notice to the employee (copy to the Board Representative) that there is an obligation to tender dues or service fee, the date of such obligation as required by this Article, the amount of such tender and to whom such tender is to be made.
 - 5.3 Fulfilled its responsibilities by sending written notice to the employee (copy to the Board Representative) that obligations have not been fulfilled by the requisite date and that a request for termination of employment was being made to the Board Representative.
 - 5.4 Stated in the request for termination of employment that such request is in conformance with the provisions of this Article, that the employee has not complied with obligations, that it is an official request of the Association, and that the "save-harmless" clause as set forth later in this Article shall be put into effect.
- Item 6 In the event the employee receiving the termination notice shall be engaged in pursuing any legal remedies contesting the termination in a court of competent jurisdiction, the employee's services shall not be terminated until such time as the employee has obtained a final decision as to the validity of said termination or said employee has ceased to pursue legal remedies available by not making timely appeal of any decision rendered in said matter by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- Item 7 In implementing this Article, the Board and Association assume the following responsibilities:
 - 7.1 The appropriate Personnel Director, as the representative of the Board, shall meet with a designated Association representative to notify the Association of: new employees recently hired, including date of employment and assigned location, recently terminated employees and employees completing probationary period.
- Item 8 The Association shall assume the legal defenses of any suit or action against the Board regarding this Article of the Agreement. The Association further shall indemnify and save-harmless the Board for any cost including damages, which may be incurred by the Board as a result of, said suit or action, subject, however, to the following conditions:
 - 8.1 The damages have not resulted from negligence, misfeasance or malfeasance of the Board or its agents.

- 8.2 The Association, after consideration with the Board, has the right to decide whether or not to appeal the decision of any court or other tribunal regarding the validity of the section or the defense, which may be assessed against the Board by any court or tribunal.
- 8.3 The Association has the right to choose the legal counsel to defend any such suit or action.
- 8.4 The Association has the right to compromise or settle any claims made against the Board under this Article.
- Item 9 The interpretation, application, administration and enforcement of this Article shall be in accordance with the requirements of the Public Employment Relations Act, as amended, and construed by the National Labor Relations Board and Federal Courts, and to the extent that it does not conflict with any Federal or State Laws.
- Item 10 Upon written authorization from the employee, the Board shall deduct from the salary of an employee and make appropriate remittance to the Association of Association dues or service fee as with other plans or programs approved by the Board. Dues or service fees shall be deducted each month beginning with the first payroll in September and remitted to the Association through Accounts Payable.
- Item 11 The Association shall promptly furnish information needed by the Board to fulfill the provisions of this Article and not otherwise available to the Board.

ARTICLE 7 ASSOCIATION AND EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Section A Association Rights

- Item 1 The Board hereby agrees that every employee shall join or support the Association, within the confines of Article VI, for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining or negotiations and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. The Board shall not directly or indirectly discourage, deprive or coerce an employee or the Association in the enjoyment of all rights conferred by the laws and Constitution of the State of Michigan and the Constitution of the United States; and it will not discriminate against an employee because of such employee's membership in the Association and participation in collective negotiations with the Board, or the institution of a grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement or under Act 379 of the Michigan Public Employee's Act of 1965, as amended.
- Item 2 The Association shall be permitted the use of school facilities for regular and special business meetings of the Association and for committee meetings on Association business provided such use is requested and can be arranged in advance without disrupting other commitments for use of the premises and does not incur additional cost to the Board.
- Item 3 Staff bulletin board provided in each building and the inter-school mailing system shall be available to the Association in posting and distributing notices pertinent to Association business. A copy of any notice shall be forwarded to the Board upon request.

- Item 4 The Board shall furnish the Association, in response to reasonable requests, information available concerning the financial resources of the District, tentative budgetary requirements and allocations, and such other information as will assist the Association in developing intelligent, accurate, informed and constructive programs on behalf of the employees, together with information which may be necessary for the Association to process a grievance or complaint.
- Item 5 In addition to the release time provided to the President, the Association shall be granted a maximum of twenty-five (25) days of release time without loss of pay for officers, delegates, committee chairpersons, and/or members to take part in business which pertains to the Association. The Association shall submit appropriate forms for the release time other than that provided to the President. No employee, excluding the president or a member serving the state or national association in a leadership role, shall be granted release time for more than five (5) days per school year. The District, the Association and the employee shall develop plans to minimize any possible interruption of work responsibilities. Time in addition to the aforementioned days may be worked out for members serving the National or State Association in leadership roles.
- Item 6 The Board recognizes the right of its employees through the Association to appropriately invoke the assistance of the State Labor Mediation Board, or a Mediator from such public agency, or an Arbitrator appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement.
- Item 7 The Association president shall be permitted to adjust the workday and work week to conduct Association business providing the regular job responsibilities are met. Work schedule adjustments shall be by agreement between the Association president and the immediate supervisor.
- Item 8 Employees shall be excused once each month at 4:00 P.M. to attend a meeting of the Association general membership. Employees shall not change their work schedule on the day of the Association meeting.

Section B Employee Rights

- Item 1 Employees shall not be prevented from wearing insignia, pins or other identification of Association membership.
- Item 2 The provisions of this Agreement, including wages, hours of employment and conditions of employment shall be applied without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, handicap and marital status.
- Item 3 Employees shall have the right, upon request, to review the contents of their personnel files. Reviews shall be scheduled by appointment with the appropriate Personnel Director who shall be present during the review. A representative of the Association may, at the employee's request, be present for this review. Access to personnel files shall only be authorized by the appropriate Personnel Director who shall be present during the review. The file shall contain the following items of information, if

applicable:

- 3.1 Application for employment or transfer
- 3.2 Record of skill tests taken
- 3.3 Payroll Authorization forms
- 3.4 Probationary and continuing performance evaluations
- 3.5 Other information of which the employee has been made aware
- Item 4 The Board shall provide employees with the appropriate equipment and physical environment conducive to adequately perform the duties and responsibilities of the position in an efficient manner. The Board will make every effort to create an environment and provide the necessary equipment to make all employees as comfortable as possible.
- Item 5 No disciplinary action shall be taken against a member of the bargaining unit unless a representative of the PESA or the MEA has been notified either orally, or in writing. Employees who are complained against shall be entitled to a meeting with their supervisor and the complainant at the request of the employee. An employee may request Association representation at this meeting.
- Item 6 Employees will not be required to administer to students more than emergency first aid. Employees shall not administer medication to students, other than prescribed oral medication.
- Item 7 The District agrees to indemnify bargaining unit members against any damages, fines, legal fees, or other costs that may result as a consequence of following District policy in administering prescribed oral medication according to the guidelines established by the District's Risk Management Insurance Carrier.
- Item 8 An employee who believes their mental or physical health is adversely affected in an assignment can request, and shall be granted a hearing with their immediate supervisor's supervisor. The hearing shall be held and a reply indicating action to be taken shall be given within three (3) workdays of said request. The assistance of a mutually agreeable third party can be requested to expedite a solution. Appeals of decisions made at this Level may be made to the Assistant Superintendent Personnel and Labor Relations.

Section C Payroll Deductions

- Item 1 Upon written authorization from the employee, the district shall deduct from the wages of any employee and make appropriate remittance for the following:
 - 1.1 Supplementary riders and option programs made available with the District's health and hospitalization plans.
 - 1.2 Pontiac Area United Way
 - 1.3 Tax sheltered annuities as permitted by the current rules and regulations of the Internal Revenue Service.
 - 1.4 Association dues or service fee

- 1.5 Other jointly approved programs and financial institutions. The Board will agree to include Comerica Bank and Michigan National Bank if they are technically compatible, and there will be no cost to the District.
- Item 2 An employee may elect to receive pay bi-weekly on a 26-pay basis. Such election shall be made between April 1 and April 30 of the school year preceding implementation and shall continue from year to year unless changed by the employee. Changes to the election for the next school year shall only be made between April 1 and April 30. In a fiscal year when there are 27-pay Fridays, the bi- weekly 26-pay schedule shall be 27 pays. This item shall only apply to those members who have elected 26 pays in accordance with the attached March 5, 2019 TA Appendix "X".

Section D Agreement Distribution

Item 1 This Agreement shall be posted on the Board's transparency page within ninety (90) days of ratification by the parties.

Section E Job Description Committee

- Item 1 The Job Description committee shall be responsible for the review of the content of all job descriptions for new secretarial positions, or changes in job descriptions.
- Item 2 The committee shall be comprised of two (2) members from the Association appointed by the Association President and two (2) Administrators representing the Human Resources department.
- Item 3 The Job Description Committee shall make its recommendation on a job descriptions' content to Human Resources in writing. Human Resources shall respond to the Committee's recommendation within ten (10) workdays after the day it is received. The decision of Human Resources shall be implemented within twenty (20) workdays.
- Item 4 Release time for the Association representatives to the Committee shall be granted for the purpose of attending meetings to discharge the responsibility of this committee.
- Item 5 A copy of all job descriptions for all positions covered by this Agreement shall be given to the Association.

Section F Negotiation Committee

- Item 1 The Association shall be granted release time not to exceed twenty (20) days, a total of one hundred sixty (160) work hours, to enable the Association's Negotiating Committee to participate in scheduled negotiation sessions with the Board during regular work hours. Beginning on the 21st day, release time shall be scheduled on an alternating basis.
- Item 2 The Board shall make every effort, within its financial limitations and considerations of educational needs of the District, to reach a fair wage and economic benefits schedule.

Section G Site-Based Decision Making

Item 1 Site-Based Decision Making (SBDM) is a joint planning and problem solving process that seeks to improve the quality of life in the school and work-site. It is a process through which those individuals responsible for the implementation of a decision at the building level are actively and effectively involved in making the decision. Association members will be invited and encouraged to participate in this process.

ARTICLE 8 PROBATION-SENIORITY-EVALUATION

Section A Probation

- Item 1 The first six (6) months for a new employee shall be a probationary period. A probationary employee shall have no security status in the classification and may be discharged any time during the probationary period, if, in the opinion of the Board, performance is not satisfactory.
- Item 2 A less than fifty-two (52) week employee hired within the last four (4) months before the end of the employee's work year shall fulfill the remainder of the probationary period after the start of the employee's new work year.

Section B Seniority

- Item 1 An employee continued in employment for more than six (6) months shall have seniority rights. Seniority shall be computed from the date of employment as a secretarial employee.
- Item 2 If two or more employees have the same employment date seniority shall be determined by the last four (4) digits of their social security number, which is considered as a whole number. The employee with the highest number will be considered the most senior. (e.g. 8765 is higher than 5678)
- Item 3 An employee with continuous service shall have seniority rights over an employee with interrupted service if both have the same seniority date.
- Item 4 The District shall maintain a seniority list of employees starting with the longest time of service in the bargaining unit. This list shall be made available to the Association upon request.
- Item 5 An employee's seniority shall terminate if the employee quits, retires, is laid off for a continuous period of two (2) years, or is discharged.
- Item 6 A former employee returning to the bargaining unit as a result of a job posting shall be granted all benefits and rights granted within this Agreement except that time outside the bargaining unit shall not be counted in the provision of seniority for transfer, promotion and layoff purposes.

Section C Evaluation

- Item 1 Probationary Employee
 - 1.1 At least one (1) informal evaluation conference shall be held by the immediate Supervisor with the employee before the completion of the six (6)

month probationary period. At the end of the sixth month, a written evaluation signed by the immediate Supervisor and the employee shall be filed in the employee's personnel file in the Personnel Office.

- 1.2 The employee's immediate Supervisor may request an evaluation at any time it is deemed appropriate.
- Item 2 Non-Probationary Employee
 - 2.1 An employee who has completed the six (6) month probationary period may be evaluated annually but at a minimum shall receive a written evaluation every third year after the initial annual evaluation providing the employee remains in the same position and with the same supervisor. An initial annual evaluation shall be required when there is a change of position or supervisor. One (1) copy of the evaluation shall be given to the employee and one (1) copy shall be placed in the employee's personnel file in the Personnel Office. The District pledges to enforce this policy with respect to all PESA members.
 - 2.2 The employee's immediate Supervisor may request an evaluation at any time but not more frequently than once every eighty (80) work days.
 - 2.3 In the event deficiencies in performance are observed, the administrator shall provide written notice of the specific deficiencies to the employee and shall discuss the deficiencies with the employee. The employee shall be involved in the development and implementation of plans of improvement. A written statement shall be provided to the employee identifying specific ways to improve and the assistance to be made available by the administrator. Reasonable time shall be allowed to accomplish the necessary improvements.

ARTICLE 9 WORKDAY

Section A Hours of Employment

- Item 1 The normal workday shall consist of eight (8) hours, Monday through Friday, excluding a lunch period, during the school year beginning with the first day for students in the regular K-12 calendar and ending on the last day of the regular school year. The normal workday shall consist of seven (7) hours, Monday through Friday, exclusive of a lunch period on non-student days as defined by the regular K-12 calendar effective with the ratification of this Agreement. In addition, the following days before holidays are scheduled as seven (7) hour workdays: The last workday before Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, Good Friday, and Memorial Day.
- Item 2 The workday as defined in Item 1 of this Section may be scheduled to meet the special needs and circumstances peculiar to buildings and/or departments. Employees shall report for duty within the organizational pattern of the building and/or department to which they are assigned.
- Item 3 The District will permit the scheduling of flexible daily work hours providing the needs of the assigned office or program are met. Flexible scheduling will permit, by example, an eight (8) hour day excluding an hour or one-half hour lunch period, and adjustment in the starting and ending time of the workday. Flexible daily schedules shall be

established between the employees in the assigned office or program and the immediate supervisor.

Section B Rest Periods

Item 1 Employees shall be entitled to one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period in the morning and one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period in the afternoon. Rest periods shall be taken at a time and in a manner that does not interfere with the efficiency of the work unit as determined by the immediate supervisor. The rest period is intended to be a recess to be preceded and followed by an extended work period; thus, it shall not be used to cover an employee's late arrival to work or early departure, nor shall it be regarded as cumulative if not taken.

Section C Lunch Period

- Item 1 Employees shall be entitled to a duty free uninterrupted lunch period of not less than thirty (30) minutes but not to exceed one (1) hour.
- Item 2 The lunch period shall be established by the immediate Supervisor in accordance with the organizational pattern best suited to the particular building and/or department. The employee may not work during a scheduled lunch period on a regular basis with an equal amount of time off later.

Section D Temporary Work Situation

- Item 1 Employees shall not be assigned work which may be properly distributed to other personnel except temporarily and for good reason.
- Item 2 Effort shall be made by the Board to provide necessary extra assistance when additional help is requested by the employee's immediate Supervisor.
- Item 3 An employee shall not be required to assume the additional responsibilities of an absent employee's position except during short term emergencies or vacation periods.
- Item 4 The wages of the one (1) employee who is required to temporarily handle the work responsibilities of an absent employee or a vacated position as well as the employee's own responsibilities shall be increased ten percent (10%) starting on the twentieth (20th) workday. If the temporary assignment continues more than twenty-six (26) workdays, it shall be retroactive to the first day. This provision shall also apply if the absent employee's work responsibilities are divided between two (2) or more employees, they will split the ten (10%) percent, each receiving an equal percentage.
- Item 5 The District will pay an employee an additional 5% after thirteen (13) workdays for completion of additional work assignments of an absent PESA employee for whom a substitute has been provided.
- Item 6 Positions, as defined in Article III, Item 1, shall not be filled by Clerical Aides nor part- time employees except on a temporary basis not to exceed ten (10) workdays.

Section E Summer Work Schedule

Item 1 The District will permit scheduling 35 hours in a four-day week providing the needs of the assigned office or program are met. Short work weeks will be permitted beginning the first week after the regular school year ends and continuing to the week before the first student day in the regular K-12 calendar. The summer work week schedule shall be established between the employees in the assigned office or program and the immediate supervisor.

Section F Extended School Year

- Item 1 Secretarial Work Year
 - 1.1. The extended school year position is considered a 46-week position.
 - 1.2. The current site secretary may elect to work the required number of days within the regular work year for elementary secretaries.
 - 1.3. The current site secretary may elect to work the extended school year calendar.
- Item 2 If the site secretary elects to work the regular work year for elementary secretaries, a substitute from the bargaining unit will be provided to complete the extended year.
- Item 3 The election by the site secretary to work either the regular or extended work year shall continue from year to year while the site continues an extended school year calendar.

ARTICLE 10 ASSIGNMENT-VACANCY

Section A Assignment

Definitions

Industry standard(s): are defined as the mandatory skills required to perform the job effectively and measured by TestGenius for each PESA position.

- Item 1 Official assignment of employees shall be made by the appropriate Personnel Director.
- Item 2 An employee assigned to a specific position shall expect to continue in such assignment except when the District can show good cause why the transfer is necessary. The Board and the Association agree there may be a need for an involuntary transfer. The appropriate Personnel Director may transfer an employee provided the employee meets the industry standards for the new position and provided the transfer does not involve alteration of current salary. Involuntary transfers shall be made only after the appropriate personnel director has discussed the proposed transfer with the employee involved and any objections by the employee given consideration. The employee shall be given ten (10) workdays notice of any involuntary transfer. The employee shall have the right to review by the assistant superintendent responsible for personnel and may have a representative of the association present.
- Item 3 Applicants shall possess the skills and qualifications necessary for the specific job as defined in the job description.

- Item 4 A non-employee including substitutes shall be required to successfully pass skill tests as determined by the job descriptions before being assigned to a position.
- Item 5 A copy of the job description shall be given to each employee and to each new employee when assigned to a position in order to facilitate the performance of duties.
- Item 6 An employee must remain in the assigned work station for one (1) year. Exceptions occur when:
 - 6.1 The employee was awarded a position in a higher classification.
 - 6.2 The employee was recalled to a position other than the position from which the employee was laid off.
 - 6.3 The employee's position was eliminated, but the employee was not laid off.
 - 6.4 The employee accepts a position in the displacement process.
 - 6.5 The Board determines transfer is necessary to fulfill the efficiency of designated operations.
- Item 7 When a more senior employee exercises job rights to a position held by a less senior employee, both may apply for a posted position in less than one (1) year.

Section B Vacancy

Item 1 A vacancy is a newly created position or a position not currently filled because the employee in the position terminated, was granted a Leave of Absence or was awarded a different position, and the Board has determined that the position will not be eliminated. The Association shall be notified within ten (10) workdays of the day the vacancy occurred of the Board's decision to post or eliminate the vacated position. If the position is not eliminated, the vacated position shall be posted within five (5) workdays from notification. Vacated positions shall be posted for a minimum of five

(5) workdays and shall include the current qualifications, skills required, updated job description responsibilities, classification and work year.

- Item 2 Applications shall be submitted via the online hiring portal. Employees making application shall be interviewed or contacted by the appropriate Personnel Director prior to final selection.
- Item 3 Only employees who have satisfactorily completed the probationary period may apply for a posted position and receive consideration.
- Item 4 A vacancy shall be staffed by a current employee who applies for the position when the employee's qualifications, including training, extent of experience, and demonstrated ability are similar to a non-employee.
- Item 5 In cases where two (2) or more similarly qualified current employees are competing for a vacancy, the one (1) with the most seniority in the bargaining unit shall be appointed.
- Item 6 The decision of the Board shall be final and not subject to the grievance procedure unless the provisions of the Agreement have been violated.

- Item 7 Employees who apply for posted vacancies may be required to pass skill tests specified in the job description for that position, if the skill test has not been taken in five (5) or more years, the employee may be required to take and pass a current skills test based on industry standards.
- Item 8 The successful applicant shall be notified of the results of the selection process within ten (10) workdays after the close of the posting period.
- Item 9 The successful applicant will assume the responsibilities of the vacancy within ten (10) workdays after notification unless required posting(s) result from the awarding of the position or other circumstances exist. A move that will be delayed more than ten (10) workdays following the posting of a subsequent position shall be reviewed with the transferring employee and the Association. In any event the employee shall receive pay at the new rate beginning the sixteenth workday after notification of the award and shall be placed in the new position no later than the morning of the thirtieth (30) workday after the position has been awarded. Notwithstanding anything within this paragraph, if the supervising position is vacant at the time the successful applicant is notified of the award, the employee will start the new assignment upon the hiring of the supervisor in order to ensure supervision of the employee is adequate, unless, at the District's discretion administration wants the successful applicant to start sooner.
- Item 10 Employees shall be placed at their current experience step on the wage schedule when moving to a new position.
- Item 11 Employees not selected for a position shall be notified in writing on the same day as notification to the employee awarded the position.
- Item 12 Vacancies shall be filled in the following order for employees who meet industry standards: Current employees, including those who are displaced, in order of seniority; laid off employees in order of seniority.
- Item 13 A temporary position may be implemented not to exceed 120 workdays. If the position is still needed at the 120th day, an extension can be requested at which time the Association and Administration shall meet during the extension period to determine if the position is needed as a permanent position. No temporary position will be extended beyond 1 year.
- Item 14 Except in case of an emergency, no vacancy shall be staffed on a temporary basis until such vacancy has been posted as defined in Item 1 of this Section.
- Item 15 A vacancy that occurs caused by an employee's absence due to illness, disability or Leave of Absence (excluding the reason for either travel or study) shall be staffed on a temporary basis as long as the absence does not exceed six (6) calendar months and the employee indicates intention of returning. If the employee resigns or fails to return within the time limit, the position shall be declared vacant and posted as defined in Item 1 of this Section.
- Item 16 The position of an employee who is absent for five (5) consecutive workdays and who fails to report their absence to the immediate Supervisor shall be considered vacant,

the position shall be posted and the employee terminated following the procedures set forth in Article XI, Item 9.

- Item 17 The position of an employee who fails to notify the immediate Supervisor once every ten (10) workdays regarding a continued illness or absence, unless on a Leave of Absence without pay, shall be considered vacant, the position shall be posted and the employee terminated.
- Item 18 Human Resource and Finance positions shall be subject to the following vacancy provisions
 - 18.1 Vacancies will be filled with the most qualified applicant for the position based on criteria such as training, expertise and interpersonal skills. The determination of qualifications shall be made by the administration; however, the administration shall not be arbitrary or capricious in making this decision.
 - 18.2 The district may post these positions internally and externally concurrently.
 - 18.3 For an internal or external candidate to interview they must possess the minimum qualifications and be able to pass the test(s) administered by the agreed upon testing company (i.e. Test Genius) to meet the industry standards.
 - 18.4 If the district hires an external candidate over a similarly qualified internal candidate, the situation may be grieved.
 - 18.5 The district agrees to keep all notes related to hiring for possible grievance purposes.
- Item 19 Testing shall only be required when moving to the following departments: Athletics, Student Services, Human Resources, Business Office, and Special Education.
- Item 20 The District agrees to provide practice testing via TestGenius to PESA members 4 times per year. Employees will have access to take the modules that the district selects and that are needed for employee advancement.

ARTICLE 11 DISCIPLINE

- Item 1 The purpose of discipline is to correct inappropriate behavior or performance.
- Item 2 The term "discipline" as used in this agreement includes warnings, oral reprimand, written reprimand, suspension with pay, suspension without pay and dismissal. The employee and the Association shall be notified either orally or in writing by the appropriate Personnel Director of any disciplinary action. When the employer can demonstrate just cause, discipline may begin with any disciplinary action. Records of Disciplinary actions that are eligible to be removed from the employee's record after a period of two (2) years of successful work performance. HR and PESA shall meet yearly to review employee discipline files, to determine which files are eligible for removal. All disciplinary actions that are determined to be eligible for removal shall be removed.
- Item 3 The Board retains the right to dismiss an employee for insubordination, failure to perform duties properly, neglect of duty or improper conduct after the disciplinary steps in Item 2 have been met. The Board retains the right to discharge an employee

immediately in cases where the offense is of sufficient severity to warrant immediate dismissal.

- Item 4 Discipline shall occur if the employee fails to perform the duties required of the position in an acceptable manner, neglects the duties and responsibilities of the position or demonstrates inappropriate behavior.
- Item 5 No employee shall be disciplined without just cause.
- Item 6 An employee shall be entitled to have an Association representative present when being disciplined. Any disciplinary action shall be done in privacy. An employee shall be notified in advance when a meeting is called for the purpose of investigating or acting on a matter which may result in discipline of the employee.
- Item 7 If reversal of any disciplinary action occurs, the employee shall not be subject to prejudice.
- Item 8 The employee shall be provided written notification at the conclusion of the investigation when the decision is to take no disciplinary action.
- Item 9 A dismissed employee shall be entitled to earned, prorated vacation allowance.
- Item 10 If an employee is absent from work for five (5) consecutive days without prior notice to the Supervisor, the District shall send notice of intent to discipline by certified letter "Addressee Only", to the employee's last known address. A copy of this letter shall be provided at the same time to the Association. The employee's economic benefits shall be continued until the first of the month following final notice of delivery or non-delivery of the certified letter.

ARTICLE 12 RESIGNATION

- Item 1 An employee who wishes to resign shall give written notice to the appropriate Personnel Director at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to its effect. Whenever possible, the employee shall give more than fourteen (14) days notice to insure orientation and training of the new employee.
- Item 2 An employee who resigns in accordance with the terms of Item 1 of this Article shall, prior to termination of employment, use earned vacation days and vacation days earned for the current year or shall receive pay at the effective resignation date for unused earned vacation days and vacation days earned for the current year. The appropriate Personnel Director shall determine which option shall be exercised in terms of the needs of the District.
- Item 3 See also Article 20, Section K of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 HEALTH REQUIREMENTS

Item 1 In the event personal illness, injury or disability could affect the employee's ability to perform assigned responsibilities, the Board may require a physician's certification

that the employee is able to perform assigned responsibilities. The Board may require the employee to see a physician to verify the health condition. All examinations shall be performed by a physician approved by the Board and the employee. The employee may dispute the diagnosis and obtain a second opinion by an independent physician. If the diagnoses of the physicians are not in agreement, a mutually acceptable third physician will be utilized to determine the health condition. Required physical examinations shall be at the expense of the Board.

Item 2 In the interest of protecting children and other employees, the Board may require a physical examination of an employee at any time. Required physical examinations shall be at the expense of the Board.

ARTICLE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Item 1 A reclassification is a change in the employee's present job classification.

A job classification committee composed of 2 secretaries and 2 administrators shall be established for the purpose of conducting a job classification review. Decisions of the committee must be supported by at least 3 votes.

Item 2 When an employee believes that the duties and responsibilities of a position have substantially changed, the employee may initiate a job classification review by making a written request to the appropriate Personnel Director and the Association. The employee must complete the secretarial position analysis questionnaire available from either the Association or the personnel office as part of the review.

The job classification committee will meet within 30 calendar days of receiving a job classification review request.

- Item 3 The findings of the Job Classification committee shall be received and approved by the appropriate Personnel Director within ten (10) workdays.
- Item 4 Classification adjustments as the result of the job classification review shall be retroactive to the date the classification review request was received by the personnel office.
- Item 5 Approved job classification upgrades shall be referred to the job description committee.
- Item 6 Release time for Association Representatives to the committee to conduct on-site audits shall be granted in addition to the Association release time granted elsewhere in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 15 STAFF REDUCTION AND RECALL

Section A Staff Reduction

Item 1 Reductions in the work force that are deemed necessary by the Board shall be discussed with the Association's Negotiating Committee.

- Item 2 No employee shall be laid off pursuant to a necessary reduction in personnel unless given written notification of said action at least thirty (30) calendar days before such action is to take place.
- Item 3 If there are employees to be laid off, the necessary numbers of probationary employees shall be immediately laid off. If there are no probationary employees, the necessary number of least senior employees shall be laid off in reverse order of seniority.
- Item 4 If an employee has notified the Board of intent to return from leave of absence but no vacancy exists, the employee shall be treated as any other employee based on seniority, and the Board may effect a layoff as provided in Sections (1), (2) and (3) above. With the exception of return from leave due to illness-self, the District may provide a position or require the employee to complete the leave.
- Item 5 An employee will be presumed to have voluntarily terminated employment with the District when, following a layoff for a lack of work or funds, the employee fails or refuses to notify the District of his/her intention to return to work within three (3) work days after receipt of written notice to return, or having notified the District of his/her intent to return, fails to do so within five (5) calendar days after receipt of such notice, or upon the day established for the employee's return, whichever is later. If the District is unable to deliver notice of recall because the employee has failed to maintain a current address with the District, the employee will be presumed to have voluntarily terminated employment with the District.

Section B Displacement

- Item 1 In the following instances, an employee is considered displaced: A position is eliminated but the employee is not laid off: a more senior employee exercises job rights to a position held by a less senior employee: an employee returns from leave or is recalled from layoff to a different classification or work year.
- Item 2 No employee may be hired new to the district when a displaced employee meets the minimum skill requirements specified in the job description and accepts the position.
- Item 3 A displaced employee who meets the minimum skill requirements in the job description shall first be placed in a vacant position in the same job classification and same work year. If no such position exists, the employee may elect placement as provided in Sections 4, 5 or 6 below.
- Item 4 A displaced employee who meets the minimum skill requirements in the job description may exercise seniority rights as follows:
 - 4.1 The employee may claim seniority over a less senior employee who is also the least senior employee in the same job classification and work year.
 - 4.2 If there is not a less senior employee in the same job classification the employee may claim seniority in the succeeding lower classifications over a less senior employee who is also least senior in that classification.
 - 4.3 When there are no employees laid off or to be laid off the employee shall have the right to decline placement to the least senior position and to elect

placement as an "unassigned" secretary as provided in Item 5.

- Item 5 When there are no employees laid off or to be laid off, the Board shall provide the employee whose position is eliminated but who is not laid off, or the employee displaced by a more senior employee exercising job rights, the opportunity to work in a position of "unassigned" secretary for no more than a twelve (12) month period. Also eligible for such a position will be employees who have notified the Board that they wish to return upon expiration of leave but for whom no vacancy exists. There shall be one (1) "unassigned" secretarial position created for each such employee. The board is not required to offer or continue the position of "unassigned" secretary when there are employees laid off or to be laid off. Such position shall include all rights under this Agreement. The rate of pay shall continue at the classification of the employee prior to placement as an "unassigned" secretary. At the end of twelve (12) months the employee may accept a vacant position in a lower classification with the same or different work year at the scheduled rate of pay, apply for an unpaid leave of absence, if eligible, or be treated as a voluntary termination.
- Item 6 When there are employees laid off or to be laid off, a displaced employee may elect to accept a vacant position in a different classification with the same or different work year. The rate of pay shall be at the rate of the classification of the elected position. The employee must accept return to the first position available in the job classification and work year from which displaced.
- Item 7 A displaced employee shall retain all contractual rights to apply for vacant positions. Displaced employees will not be required to remain in the position for a one-year period to be eligible for transfer.
- Item 8 If there are two (2) or more employees displaced, return to position shall be offered to the most senior employee first. The phrase "return to position" means return to original classification and original work year.
- Item 9 For purposes of this Section only:
 - 9.1 All positions of 44 or less weeks shall be considered the same work year.
 - 9.2 All positions of 45 through 48 weeks shall be considered the same work year.
 - 9.3 All positions of 49 through 52 weeks shall be considered the same work year.
- Item 10 Employees are no longer displaced when they: Elect placement to a position in the same classification and work year from which displaced; decline placement to an available position in the same classification and work year from which displaced; are the successful applicant for a vacant position in any classification and work year.

Section C Recall

Item 1 A laid off employee shall be placed on a list for a period of two (2) years and recalled in the reverse order of layoff. The most senior laid off employee shall be recalled to the first vacancy in the bargaining unit. The laid off employee shall be considered unassigned until placed in the first posted vacancy for which current employees do not make written application, or for which no current employee possesses the minimum skill requirements specified in the posted job description. The laid off employee must meet the minimum skill requirements specified in the posted job description for permanent placement in a position. No new employee shall be hired for a position until all employees on the recall list who meet the skill requirements specified in the job description are offered the position.

- Item 2 Refusal to accept recall to a position within the same classification and work year shall be considered a voluntary termination. An employee may refuse to accept recall to a position in a classification lower than the classification held at the time of layoff or a position with a different work year but shall not remain on the recall list for more than two (2) years.
- Item 3 While unassigned, the recalled employee shall receive pay at the same rate as when laid off, and all current benefits.
- Item 4 Employees recalled shall be reinstated with their seniority, personal accumulated sick leave and experience level credit at the time of the layoff.
- Item 5 Recall shall be by written certified mail, return receipt requested to the employee's last known address on file with the Board and shall require that the employee report for work within five (5) workdays after the date of delivery or proof of non-delivery.

ARTICLE 16 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A grievance shall mean a complaint by an employee or group of employees based on an alleged violation of one (1) or more of the expressed provisions of this Agreement.

- Item 1 **Informal Level** In the event that a unit member or the union believes a grievable incident has occurred, the member or the union shall request a meeting with the supervisor involved within five (5) school days of the occurrence of such grievable incident or the grievant's knowledge of the occurrence. If the grievant is unsatisfied with the result of the meeting or the supervisor fails or refuses to provide such meeting within five (5) days of the request, the claim or complaint may be formalized in writing as provided hereunder. The informal level may be waived by either party
- Item 2 Level One If a complaint is not resolved in a conference between the affected bargaining unit member(s) and his/her immediate supervisor, the complaint may be formalized as a grievance. A formalized grievance shall be submitted in writing within ten (5) days of the meeting between the supervisor and the affected bargaining unit member(s). A copy of the grievance shall be sent to the union and the immediate supervisor. The immediate supervisor shall, within five (5) days of the receipt of the grievance, render a written decision. A copy of this decision shall be forwarded to the grievant(s) and the union.
- Item 3 **Level Two** If the union is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level 1 or if no disposition has been made within five (5) days of receipt of the grievance, the grievance shall be transmitted to the governing body of the employer or its designee. Within seven (7) days after the grievance has been so submitted, the governing body or its designee shall meet with the union on the grievance. The employer's governing body or

its designee, within five (5) days after the conclusion of the meeting, shall render a written decision thereon with copies to the union and the grievant(s).

Both parties agree that grievance mediation through MERC is an option and can be mutually agreed upon at any time.

Item 4 **Arbitration** – If the Association is not satisfied at Level Two the Association may within ten (10) workdays submit the matter to arbitration. The Board's representative and the Association's representative shall mutually select the Arbitrator within ten (10) workdays of the arbitration request by the Association. If the parties cannot agree, the Arbitrator shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules. The only evidence or arguments which may be presented at the arbitration hearing are those which were used in the previous steps of the grievance procedure.

The Arbitrator's powers stem from this Agreement. The Arbitrator's function is to interpret and apply this Agreement and to pass upon alleged violations thereof. The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from or modify any of the terms of this Agreement, nor shall have any authority to make any decisions which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law, or which is violative of the terms of this Agreement. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the Board, the Association and the employee.

The costs of the Arbitrator's services, including expenses, if any, shall be borne equally by the Association and the Board.

- Item 5 A grievance may be withdrawn at any time without prejudice.
- Item 6 No reprisals shall be made against the aggrieved person or the Association representative(s).
- Item 7 The time limits provided in this Article shall be workdays and shall be strictly observed but may be extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed late in the year and strict adherence to the time limits may result in hardship to any party, the board shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- Item 8 Upon certification by the Association, the Board shall recognize an Association Grievance Committee of not more than five (5) members.
- Item 9 Personal complaints of employees may be discussed individually with the Supervisor without recourse to the grievance procedure. An individual employee, a group of employees or the Association shall be guaranteed the right to appeal through administrative channels and to the Board any claimed violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of Board policy or administrative procedures which are not applicable for the grievance procedures of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17 STRIKE PROHIBITION

The Association recognizes that strikes, as defined by Section 1 of Public Act 336 of 1947, of Michigan, as amended, by public employees are contrary to law and public policy. Accordingly, the Association agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it shall not direct, instigate, participate in, encourage or support any strike against the Board by any employee in the District.

ARTICLE 18 PAID LEAVE

Section A Sick Leave

Item 1 Employees shall be entitled to the following sick leave allocation per year:

Sick Leave					
Weeks	Days	Weeks	Days		
42	11.5	48	13		
43	11.8	51	13.8		
44	12	52	14		
46	12.5				

- Item 2 In case of certified illness, employees shall use sick leave days for the following reasons:
 - 2.1 Personal illness, injury or disability.
 - 2.2 Serious illness, injury or disability in the immediate family (mother, father, sister, brother, spouse, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent or grandchild).
 - 2.3 Serious illness, injury or disability in the immediate household of the employee if it is necessary for the employee to attend to the needs of the individual who is ill.
 - 2.4 Death in the family. (See Section B, Item 2.1 of the Article)
- Item 3 The unused portion of the annual sick leave shall accumulate without limit and shall include previous years' unused sick leave days.
- Item 4 Each employee's "bank" of accumulated sick leave shall be credited with sick leave entitlement for the entire work year at the beginning of each work year. In the event the employee is terminated for any reason during the work year, an adjustment shall be made in the employee's final check for sick leave usage already paid but not actually earned.
- Item 5 An employee absent due to an injury received on the job or in the line of duty shall have time deducted from the accumulated sick leave days at the rate of one-half (1/2) day for each day absent. An employee injured on the job or in the line of duty and approved to receive Worker's Disability Compensation wages (starting after an absence of seven (7) workdays) shall have time deducted from the accumulated sick leave days at the rate of one-half (1/2) day for each day approved to receive Compensation wages. The total income received from Worker's Disability

Compensation and the Board sick leave payments shall not exceed the employee's regular wages.

Item 6 All sick leave accumulated by an employee shall be forfeited if the employee resigns or is dismissed except in cases where the employee qualifies for reimbursement on termination, as provided in Article XX of Section K.

Section B Approved Leave Days

- Item 1 Approved leave means an activity that requires an employee's presence during work hours and is of such nature that it cannot be attended to at a time other than during the regularly scheduled workday. Employees may use three (3) days annually, deducted from their accumulated sick leave days, as Approved Leave days. Unused Approved Leave days shall not accumulate from year to year. These days must be applied for on appropriate Personnel Office forms and be approved by a Personnel Officer one (1) week in advance, if possible.
- Item 2 Approved Leave days may be used for the following reasons:
 - 2.1 Funeral other than those defined in this Article, Section A, Items 2.2 and 2.3.
 - 2.2 Religious holidays, which require absence from work.
 - 2.3 Transaction of legal business.
 - 2.4 Emergency or casualty, which requires the presence of the employee.
 - 2.5 Court appearance when the employee is required to attend proceedings.
 - 2.6 Registration for approved courses by an employee or an employee's child, which requires the presence of the employee.
 - 2.7 Reasons other than those specified above and approved by a Personnel officer.
 - 2.8 Wedding of self or immediate family member.
- Item 3 The records of all approved or denied requests for Approved Leave shall be maintained by a Personnel officer.
- Item 4 Employees may elect to use two (2) of the approved leave days as personal leave days. The day shall be deducted from accumulated leave days. Notification of the use of a personal leave day shall be made one (1) week in advance, unless an unforeseen emergency situation occurs. Personal leave shall be granted unless a serious school problem will result from the granting of the request. These days shall not be used to extend vacations or off periods.

Section C Sick Leave Bank

- Item 1 Employees must have completed two (2) years of active service before becoming eligible for sick bank usage.
- Item 2 Employees who have exhausted their own sick leave days and have been absent for five (5) consecutive days without pay may, upon approval, use sick leave days from a Sick

Leave Bank provided by the Board equal to ¼ of the accumulated leave total for all secretaries in the bargaining unit.

- 2.1 The determination of the number of days in the sick bank will be made annually on July 1.
- 2.2 There will be no carry over for unused days in the sick leave bank.
- 2.3 If the sick leave bank days are exhausted, the personal sick leave days of each member of the bargaining unit will be reduced by an amount sufficient to cover the usage.
- Item 3 The Sick Leave Bank is for prolonged illness, injury or disability of the employee and shall terminate at the time the employee is eligible for Long Term Disability benefits.
- Item 4 The employee must apply through the Association to receive Sick Leave Bank Forms.
- Item 5 The employee must submit Sick Leave Forms, including medical verification to the Board. Medical verification shall be required on a monthly basis thereafter. The Board may require that the employee's disability be confirmed by the Board's physician.
- Item 6 Employees are eligible to draw upon the Bank only during the time they are covered by this Agreement.

Section D Jury Duty

Item 1 An employee called or subpoenaed for jury duty shall be paid by the board the difference between the rate of jury pay and regular pay for the time required by law to serve. Employees called for jury duty shall suffer no loss of sick leave days.

Section E Emergency Closing of Schools

- Item 1 When schools are closed due to inclement weather or an emergency, and employees are notified by the Superintendent or designee not to report to work, or are sent home early; there shall be no loss of pay or deductions from paid leave banks.
- Item 2 If the district is required to make up a day(s) that school was closed in order to receive full state aid, the employee will work the re-scheduled day at no extra compensation, as the employee has already been compensated as referenced above in Item 1.
- Item 3 If employees are requested to work by their Immediate Supervisor (through the authority of the Superintendent or designee), because of special circumstances (i.e., payroll, copy center-special projects, athletics, etc.), they will receive additional compensation at their normal rate of pay or an equal amount of compensatory time with the approval of the Superintendent or designee.

Section F Bereavement

Item 1 Employees shall be granted three (3) days to attend the funeral of a member of the Employee's immediate family, not chargeable to the Employee's accumulated Leave Bank.

Immediate family is defined as the Employee's spouse, child (natural, step, or adopted), parent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister, grandchild or grandparent. The Funeral Service Bulletin or Obituary is to be attached to the PAR submitted to Human Resources, following return from the immediate family member funeral.

ARTICLE 19 LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

Section A Illness – Self or Family

- Item 1 A Leave of Absence without pay may be requested if an employee has at least one full year of seniority for the following reasons.
 - 1.1 Certified personal illness, injury or disability.
 - 1.1.1 To apply for such a leave, a request shall be presented in writing to the Personnel Department accompanied by proof of personal illness, injury or disability which has been certified by the employee's physician. The Board may require the employee to see a physician to verify the health condition. All examinations shall be performed by a physician approved by the Board and employee. If the diagnoses of physicians are not in agreement, a mutually acceptable third physician shall be utilized to determine the health condition. Required physical examinations shall be at the expense of the Board.
 - 1.1.2 To return from such leave, the employee shall immediately notify the Board in writing of the termination of the illness, disability or injury, indicate the anticipated return to work date, and provide a physician's certification of ability to perform assigned responsibilities. The Board may require the employee to see a physician to verify the health condition. All examinations shall be performed by a physician approved by the Board and employee. If the diagnoses of the physicians are not in agreement, a mutually acceptable third physician will be utilized to determine the health condition. Required physical examinations shall be at the expense of the Board.
 - 1.2 Serious illness, injury, disability or death in the immediate family (mother, father, sister, brother, spouse, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild) or household of the employee.
 - 1.2.1 To apply for such leave a written request shall be presented to the Personnel Department accompanied by proof of illness, injury, disability or death by an appropriate authority to certify the necessity for the employee to attend to family needs.
 - 1.2.2 To return from such leave, the employee shall immediately notify the Board in writing that the leave reason or condition no longer exists and indicate the anticipated return to work date.
- Item 2 The length of a leave of absence for illness self or family shall be determined by the seniority of the employee as specified in this item.

- 2.1 For employees who have at least two (2) years of seniority, a leave of absence without pay may be granted for up to one (1) year and shall be renewable annually to a maximum of three (3) years.
- 2.2 For employees who have at least one (1) year of seniority, a leave of absence without pay may be granted for up to a maximum of six (6) months.
- Item 3 An employee who qualifies for a leave of absence shall submit a written request, accompanied by appropriate documentation to the Personnel Department no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the expiration of sick days, or the last day of work, as appropriate. During this thirty (30) day period, the employee's position and all benefits, less salary related thereto, will remain in full force and effect provided the employee:
 - 3.1 Provides a physician's statement certifying the illness, injury or condition and anticipated return to work date no later than seven (7) calendar days after expiration of sick bank or last day of work, as appropriate;
 - 3.2 Makes a reasonable effort to keep the immediate supervisor informed of the most likely date of return to work by telephone calls made no less frequently than one per week.
 - 3.3 If an employee fails to make such reasonable effort and there are no mitigating circumstances related to the absence or the employee fails to report for duty or to apply for a leave of absence prior to the expiration of the thirty (30) calendar day period, such failure shall be considered a voluntary termination.
 - 3.4 The thirty (30) calendar day grace period shall not apply to employees who qualify for use of the Association sick leave bank.
- Item 4 An employee who has completed the four-month probationary period but has less than one (1) year seniority shall be allowed the benefit of a thirty (30) day grace period described in Article XIX, Section A, Item 3, subject to the same limitations presented in that item.
- Item 5 If the employee anticipates inability to return after the expiration of the leave of absence, an extension shall be requested at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the expiration of the initial leave of absence. This extension, if granted by the Board, shall not become effective until the expiration of the initial leave of absence.
- Item 6 Board paid fringe benefits shall not be provided employees on leaves of absence starting with the first premium date following the effective date of the leave. Group programs will be made available at employee cost within the terms and provisions allowed by the insurance carriers.
 - 6.1 Board paid fringe benefits shall be resumed on the first premium date following the effective date of return to full employment.
- Item 7 Seniority shall be broken and employment terminated if:
 - 7.1 Leave of absence procedures are not followed:

- 7.2 A written request and appropriate certification for leave renewal are not provided annually to the Personnel Department:
- 7.3 The employee fails to notify the Board when the reason or condition for which the leave of absence was requested no longer exists.
- Item 8 A vacancy that occurs as a result of an employee on a leave of absence without pay under the terms of this section shall be staffed according to the provisions of Article X, Section B, Item 15. After five (5) calendar months, a specific position cannot be guaranteed on return from a leave of absence but reasonable effort will be made to return the employee to the original position or one commensurate with the training and experience of the employee as soon as a position becomes available.

Section B Other Leaves

- Item 1 A leave of absence without pay may be requested for the following reasons, if an employee has at least two (2) full years of seniority.
 - 1.1 Family responsibility. The employee shall submit a statement and appropriate documentation indicating the responsibility, which requires the presence of the employee in the home.
 - 1.2 Study. The employee shall submit a statement describing the program of study which will be pursued at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance to the Personnel Department for approval.
 - 1.3 Travel. The employee shall submit travel plans at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance to the Personnel Department for approval.
 - 1.4 Career Option. With at least a thirty (30) calendar day advance notice to the personnel department, a career option leave shall be granted for up to two (2) years to explore a career option outside the secretarial field and for up to one year to explore an option within the secretarial field including education. Such leave shall expire at the close of the school year in June and the employee shall provide notice by May 15 of the then current year, of resignation, intent to return or renew the leave, if applicable. Returning employees shall be expected to return for their first scheduled workday in the new fiscal year.
- Item 2 Leaves of absence shall be granted for up to one (I) year and shall be renewable annually to a maximum of two (2) years.
 - 2.1 Requests by an employee currently on leave for a subsequent leave of a different type shall be considered in the same manner as an extension. No combination of leaves of different types shall exceed the two (2) year maximum specified in this section.
 - 2.2 A request for renewal or extension of a leave of absence must be submitted in writing to an officer in the Personnel Department at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the expiration of the current leave.

- Item 3 Board paid fringe benefits shall not be provided employees on approved leaves of absence starting with the first premium date following the effective date of the leave. Group premiums will be made available at employee cost within the terms and provisions allowed by insurance carriers.
 - 3.1 Board paid fringe benefits shall be resumed on the first premium date following the effective date of return to full employment.
- Item 4 Seniority shall be broken and employment terminated if:
 - 4.1 Leave of absence procedures are not followed;
 - 4.2 A written request and appropriate certification for leave renewal are not provided annually to the Personnel Department;
 - 4.3 The employee fails to notify the Board when the reason or condition for which the leave of absence was requested no longer exists.
- Item 5 Upon return from leave, when there are employees laid off or to be laid off then the provisions of Article XV, Section B shall apply.
- Item 6 A specific position cannot be guaranteed on return from a leave of absence (except as defined in Article X, Section B, Item 15). The employee may apply for all posted vacancies but must apply for posted vacancies in their classification and within two weeks of their work year. Positions will be awarded according to Article X, Section B, Item 12.
 - 6.1 Until the employee applies for and is awarded another permanent position, the employee may choose one of the following options.
 - 6.1.1 The employee may substitute on a fifty-two (52) week basis and be paid at the original classification with full benefits.
 - 6.1.2 The employee may extend the leave of absence for a period up to an additional six (6) months, during which time the employee will be informed of position postings. At the end of six (6) months, the employee must return under the conditions listed in this item, excluding further extension of the leave, or terminate employment.
- Item 7 If an employee desires to return to employment before the expiration of a leave of absence, a specific position cannot be guaranteed but reasonable effort will be made to return the employee to a position.

ARTICLE 20 ECONOMIC BENEFITS

Section A Health Benefits

Item 1 Effective August 1, 2012 (if MESSA cannot implement by August 1, 2012, the effective date will be September 1, 2012), the Board shall provide to the eligible PESA members the choice of either the health insurance of MESSA Choices 2 \$500/\$1,000 –

10 OV with a 10/20 RX or members can elect MESSA ABC HSA plan Option 1. The district shall be responsible for the payment of the premium in compliance with the hard cap per Public Act 152.

The following hard cap amounts for the 2012-2013 school year are listed below:

\$5,500 for Single Subscribers

\$11,000 for Self and Spouse Subscribers

\$15,000 for Self and Child and Family Subscribers

The remaining cost for the employee's elected medical plan premiums shall be paid by the employee. Any amounts for the Pak will be deducted out of the premium. Contributions shall be made through payroll deduction, over 22 pay periods, on a pre-taxed basis.

1.1 The District will create a one-time insurance drug card pool of \$30,000.00. Each employee upon submitting proof of payment of co-pay will receive ½ of their cost returned to them either \$5.00 or \$10.00 per prescription. The District will present to the Association guarterly reports on this pool of money.

MESSA will provide open enrollment period the last two (2) weeks of May.

The benefits shall be implemented consistent with the carrier's rules and regulations by the first of the month following enrollment for new applicants.

- 1.2 Benefits shall allow for Sponsored Dependent Rider(s), which shall be at the employee's expense.
- 1.3 Employees hired on or after February 1, 1983 shall become eligible for benefits on the first day worked, except for those employees becoming eligible during an open enrollment period. Their benefits will begin with the first day of the month following the enrollment period.
 - 1.3.1 If the employee is absent from work on the date benefits would otherwise become effective, the effective date of coverage for benefits will be deferred to the first day the employee is actively at work.
- Item 2 The health benefit policy provided by the Board shall coordinate benefits with all other plans insuring the employees and their families, group as well as individual contracts.
- Item 3 The Board guarantees that health benefits available to employees during the term of this agreement shall be those negotiated and specified in Item 1.1 above.
- Item 4 If employees must change their status from active employees for any reason, they may apply for continuation of the health insurance directly with the carrier. The costs of continuation shall be at the employee's expense.

Section B Health Insurance Option

Item 1 Employees not selecting the health benefit will receive \$125.00 monthly for a tax

sheltered annuity of their choice.

Section C Dental Benefits

- Item 1 The Board shall pay, for those employees who apply, dental benefits of up to full family coverage that provide one hundred (100%) percent payment of diagnostic services (excluding radiographs), preventive services, and emergency palliative services, ninety (90) percent radiographs and remainder of basic services; ninety (90) percent payment of prosthodontic service and ninety (90) percent of orthodontic services for dependent children to age (19). Basic dental and prosthodontic service shall have an individual maximum of \$1,500 per year and orthodontic service shall have a lifetime individual maximum of \$1,500.
- Item 2 The dental plan shall provide for both internal and external coordination of benefits and shall be implemented in accordance with the rules and regulations of the provider.

Section D Life Insurance

- Item 1 Upon submission of written application, the Board shall provide to employees term life insurance protection in the amount of \$50,000 that shall be paid to the employee's designated beneficiary. The term life insurance program shall also provide for double indemnity in the event of accidental death and dismemberment. The duration and level of benefits will be in accordance with ADEA guidelines.
- Item 2 To become eligible for the term life benefit, employees must be at work and able to perform all required duties on the day the benefit becomes effective.
- Item 3 Employees who have board-provided term life insurance have a thirty (30) day conversion right upon termination of employment. Employees electing the right of conversion in order to keep their term life insurance in force must contact the insurance carrier within thirty (30) days of their last day of employment.
- Item 4 The term life insurance program shall be provided within the underwriting rules and regulations as set forth by the carrier in the master contract held by the policyholder.

Section E Long Term Disability Insurance

- Item 1 The Board shall provide to employees who apply long-term disability insurance. The coverage shall provide:
 - 1.1 Payment of seventy (70%) percent of the employee's normal gross earnings and shall not exceed \$1,500.00 per month after a waiting period of six (6) months.
 - 1.2 The amount of benefits will be reduced by any renumeration received during the benefit period from the employer, from Worker's Disability Compensation benefits, from Michigan School Employees Retirement Fund benefits, from primary offset from the Federal Social Security Act or from other group or organization benefit payments. The amount of the benefit paid shall not be less than ten (10%) percent of the employee's normal gross salary.

1.3 The reduction for social security benefits shall be calculated when eligible for benefits to begin and any changes paid in Social Security benefits at a later date will not be used to further reduce the benefit paid by the long-term disability insurance.

Section F Vision Insurance

Item 1 The Board shall provide VSP-3 for employees who apply and their eligible dependents as defined by the carrier. The specifications shall be as negotiated and agreed September 12, 1991.

Section G Liability Insurance

Item 1 The Board shall provide protection to employees under a liability policy, which covers legal costs and judgments in case an employee is sued in a civil action for occurrences in connection with duties, subject to normal exclusions appearing in such policies. The insurance shall provide \$1,000,000.00 coverage for a single occurrence.

Section H Vacations

Item 1 Employees with twelve (12) month assignments who have successfully completed the six (6) month probationary period shall receive vacation pay computed as follows:

1 year – 7.5 days	9 years – 13 days
2 years – 8 days	10 years – 14 days
3 years – 8.5 days	11 years – 15 days
4 years – 9 days	12 years – 16 days
5 years – 9.5 days	13 years – 17 days
6 years – 10 days	14 years – 18 days
7 years – 11 days	15 years – 19 days
8 years – 12 days	16 years – 20 days

- Item 2 Vacation days for employees with twelve (12) month assignments must be used prior to June 30 of the fiscal year in which they were earned.
- Item 3 Employees working less than a twelve (12) month assignment shall receive vacation days prorated according to the number of weeks in their work year.
- Item 4 Employees working fewer than 48 weeks in building positions hired after July 1, 1961, shall be required to take as vacation days no more than the number of non-teacher days in the school year.
- Item 5 Employees working less than a twelve (12) month assignment hired prior to July 1, 1961 have an option of taking their vacation when students are not in school or receiving full payment for unused vacation time with their final check of the school year.

- Item 6 Earned vacation days shall be scheduled by the employee with the approval of the immediate Supervisor and the appropriate Personnel Director.
- Item 7 Earned vacation time is not accumulative and must be taken within the period specified in Item 3 of this Section.
- Item 8 No employee shall be granted pay in lieu of vacation except in extenuating circumstances and only when agreed upon by the employee and the appropriate Personnel Director.
- Item 9 An employee who resigns, or retires, or is dismissed shall receive vacation pay prorated on the basis of vacation time earned for the current year as indicated in Article XII, Item 2. For retirees, this shall be paid upon presentation of a retirement identification number.
- Item 10 The estate of an employee who dies while in the service of the Board shall receive vacation pay prorated on the basis of vacation time earned for the current year.
- Item 11 When a paid holiday falls in an employee's paid vacation time, the paid holiday shall not be charged as a paid vacation day.

Section I Holidays*

- Item 1 Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Friday after Thanksgiving, December 24, Christmas, December 26, December 31st, New Year's Day, Good Friday (*see letter of agreement), Easter Monday (*see letter of agreement), Memorial Day, MLK Day, and Juneteenth are holidays without loss of pay if the holiday falls within a regular work week.
 - 1.1 December 24th and Christmas will be holidays without loss of pay for employees in less than twelve (12) month assignments.
 - 1.2 If an employee's work schedule precludes taking December 26 as a holiday, the employee will be granted a holiday on another day.
- Item 2 If a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be a holiday if school is not in session. If Monday is already a holiday, then Friday immediately prior to the holiday shall be a holiday providing school is not in session.
- Item 3 If a holiday falls on a Saturday, the Friday immediately prior to the holiday shall be a holiday providing school is not in session. If Friday is already a holiday, then the following Monday shall be a holiday if school is not in session.
- Item 4 If an employee were to lose a holiday because school is in session, the employee shall be given a day off in lieu of the holiday on a day determined by the Board. All employees shall not receive the same day but shall be scheduled based on the district's needs.

Section J Enrollment Factor

Item 1 Employees in the classification of "School Secretary" and "Senior High School Book Store Clerk" shall receive an enrollment factor to be paid in December of each year and based on the Fourth Friday count as follows:

Elementary/Head Start/Early	
Childhood/Adult Education:	\$.50 per student over 300
Hawthorne/VOCARE:	\$.20 per student over 400
Junior High:	\$.20 per student over 400
OTC/NE	\$.20 per student over 400
Senior High:	\$.20 per student over 1,750

Item 2 Each certified Special Education student enrolled by the program on the Fourth Friday count shall equal two (2) students in the Student Enrollment count in Item 1 of this Section.

Section K Severance Pay

- Employees with ten (10) years of active service within this bargaining unit who Item 1 terminate for the reasons listed below and who provide written notice at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to termination of employment shall receive pay at the time of termination for one-half (1/2) of the number of sick leave days accumulated for the first forty (40) days and one-half (1/2) of all unused accumulated sick leave days in excess of one hundred (100) days to a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) accumulated leave days, i.e., payment for a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) one-half (1/2) days. Anything herein before to the contrary notwithstanding, employees employed on January 31, 1984 having more than one hundred eighty (180) accumulated leave days shall have as a maximum number of unused leave days standing to their credit on January 30, 1984. The reasons which qualify the employee for severance pay are: retirement and participation in the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement System; resignation for reasons of personal illness; and, voluntary resignation. Effective July 1, 1992, one-half (1/2) of the number of sick leave days accumulated for the first fifty (50) days and one half (1/2) of all unused accumulated sick leave days in excess of one hundred (100) days to a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) accumulated leave days, i.e., payment for a maximum of one hundred thirty (130) one half (1/2) days.
- Item 2 The estate of employees who qualify under Item 1 of this section at the time of their demise shall be paid the severance pay due under Item 1.

Section L Professional Growth

- Item 1 Employees are urged to seek ways of improving personal skills and job performance by continuing their education and training by serving on committees, by cooperating with school and civic projects and by participating in secretarial and clerical associations at the local, county, state and national levels.
- Item 2 One (1) day per year shall be granted for an in-service workshop to include all or selected employees. The Board shall meet with the Association to cooperatively plan such a workshop for informational and training needs.

Item 3 Equivalent of one paid day for in-service/job related training (short year in one day early or staff one day late; could be spread over several evenings, Saturdays).

Voluntary For all or part of group Mutually planned and scheduled Unit members could be trainers If participate, paid regular hourly rate up to one full day wages

Item 4 PESA shall follow the Professional Development calendar negotiated between PSD and PEA.

Section M Clothing and Personal Property Damage

Item 1 The Board shall reimburse an employee for any loss, damage or destruction of clothing and personal property while fulfilling assigned duties which exceeds ten (\$10) dollars providing reasonable care has been taken by the employee. The maximum to be reimbursed shall be limited to two hundred (\$200) dollars per incident. The Board's payment shall be reduced by the amount of any insurance carrier's payment to the employee requesting reimbursement.

Section N Overtime

- Item 1 Overtime shall be approved in advance by the immediate supervisor. Exceptions shall be allowed in the case of emergency.
- Item 2 The decision to request overtime is the responsibility of the immediate Supervisor.
- Item 3 Hours worked beyond the regular workday as defined in Article IX, Section A, Item 1, including all hours worked on Saturdays, shall be paid at the rate of one hundred fifty (150%) percent of the regular hourly rate.
- Item 4 An employee scheduled to work on a Sunday shall be paid at the rate of two hundred (200%) percent of the regular hourly rate.
- Item 5 An employee scheduled to work on a holiday shall be paid at the rate of two hundred (200%) percent of the regular hourly rate in addition to the regular rate of pay.
- Item 6 The regular hourly rate is determined by dividing the employee's daily rate as set forth in Section B of Article XXI by eight (8).
- Item 7 Overtime can be justified when an assignment has been placed on a department or school which must be completed within a certain time or date and the usual work load makes it impossible to meet the deadline. Overtime shall not be used as a substitute for inadequate staffing.
- Item 8 In the event peak period work assignments make it impossible for the employee(s) to complete assignments within reasonable time limits, overtime or additional temporary help may be requested by the immediate Supervisor. Overtime shall be offered first to the employee assigned to the position; then, overtime shall be offered to other

employees in the same office according to seniority on a rotating basis in a school year; then, overtime shall be offered to qualified employees as determined by the Board according to seniority on a rotating basis in a school year. Only when no qualified employees are able to accept the overtime or in an emergency basis may the Board employ part time or temporary help.

- Item 9 Overtime shall be voluntary except in emergencies as determined by the Board. There shall be no discrimination against any employee who declines to work overtime.
- Item 10 When called in for overtime at a time other than a regular workday, the employee shall be paid a minimum of three (3) hours at the overtime rate.
- Item 11 Overtime records shall be available to the Association's President.

Section O Issuance of Paychecks

- Item 1 Direct Deposit
 - 1.1 The district will provide employees who cannot secure a bank account an alternative plan for payment, including a paper check.
 - 1.2 All employees will be paid by direct deposit effective January 1, 2009.
 - 1.3 Upon discovery of an overpayment, the district will make every effort to notify the affected employee before the reversal of funds takes place.
 - 1.4 Upon discovery of an underpayment, the district will make every effort to notify the affected employee, so that the correction can be made within three business day of notification.

Section P Mileage

Item 1 Employees who are required to use their personal car for district tasks shall submit a mileage form per district procedure and be reimbursed at the current IRS rate.

Section Q Supply Reimbursement

Item 1 Employees may purchase supplies after obtaining written pre-approval from their supervisor. Reimbursement shall be made after filling out the designated district reimbursement form.

ARTICLE 21 SALARY SCHEDULE

Section A Salary Schedule Procedures

Item 1 Salary experience level increments shall be effective July 1st of each year. Employees hired later than the end of the first week in January will remain on the step hired until July 1st following their first anniversary date.

Section B Salary Schedule

Item 1 See Appendix B for classifications D, E & F. See Appendix C for all other positions.

Section C Wage Schedule CHANGES

- Item 1 The annual Salary Schedule for the 2023-24 fiscal year will change based on the following formula:
 - 1.1 If the operating tax levy for a given fiscal year increases greater than 0% from the previous fiscal year tax levy, each member shall move one step in the salary schedule from their previous fiscal year step placement.
 - 1.2 If the operating tax levy for a given fiscal year increases less than 3% from the previous fiscal year tax levy, there will be no salary schedule increase.
 - 1.3 If the operating tax levy for a given fiscal year increases greater than 3% from the previous fiscal year tax levy, the salary schedule increase shall equal 50% of the percentage increase above 3%. For example, if the tax levy increases 6%, then the wage scale shall increase 1.5% (6% 3% x 50%). The salary schedule increase shall not exceed 5% in any given year.
 - 1.4 Exigent Circumstance: If the District's operating tax levy decreases by more than 10% from the prior fiscal year, there will be no step advancement, nor any improvements to the salary schedule.
 - 1.5 For purposes of the calculation, the document used is the "PONTIAC CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT NON-PRE PROPERTY" current year taxable value total from the current year official Form L-4028 from Oakland County Equalization divided by the same information on the prior year L-4028 form. For example, the 2022 L-4028 Total Taxable Value for Non-Pre Property = 2,073,722,060 divided by the 2021 L-4028 Total Taxable Value for Non-Pre Property = 1,866,206,290 (11.12% 3.00% x .50% = 4.06%).
 - 1.6 For the 22-23 School year, any members on step 26 will move to step 28 if they have at least 28 years of service with the District.

ARTICLE 22 DURATION OF THE AGREEMENT

- Item 1 The Board and Association mutually agree that the conditions set forth in this Agreement represent the full and complete understanding and commitment between the parties hereto which may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in and amendment hereto except wherein the Agreement specifically provides for reopening of specific Articles for negotiations.
- Item 2 Should any Article, Section or Item of the Agreement be declared invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, said Article, Section or Item shall be automatically deleted from this Agreement but the remaining Articles, Sections and Items shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement.

- Item 3 This Agreement shall supersede any specific rule or regulation of the Board, which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with the specific written provisions herein. It shall likewise supersede any contrary or inconsistent terms contained in any individual contracts heretofore in effect. The provisions of the Agreement shall be incorporated into and be considered part of the established policies of the Board with reference to the employees covered by this Agreement.
- Item 4 This Agreement shall be effective November 7, 2022 and shall continue in full force and effect until midnight June 30, 2024.

Date <u>12/24/2022</u>, 2022

JJZ P

President, Board of Education

DXA c 8, 2022 15:54 EST)

Secretary, Board of Education

Date _____, 2022

harita Jackson-Wright arita Jackson-Wright (JA 12, 2022 07:50 EST)

President, Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association

Alicia Carpenter Alicia Carpenter (Dec 13, 2022 09:54 EST)

Representative, Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association

APPENDIX A - March 28, 2019 Tentative Agreement



SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC AND THE PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION (PESA) MARCH 28, 2019

- PESA and PSD have reached a new Tentative Agreement (TA). The total value of this proposal is in 1. excess of \$35,693.89.
- The parties agree to the dismissal/withdrawal of grievance #01-2018. 2
- 3. The parties agree that Article 7, Section C, Item 2, is stricken from the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Nevertheless, the parties agree that any member of PESA as of the date of the execution of this Tentative Agreement (See Appendix C), may make a onetime election to receive pay bi-weekly on a 26-pay basis. Such election shall be made by April 30, 2019, The election will be implemented by the District's payroll office starting with the first appropriate payroll for the 2019-2020 school year (as the District will not be pre-paying any wages prior to the first actual work day of the fiscal year). In a fiscal year where there are 27-pay Friday's, the bi- weekly 26-pay schedule shall be 27 pays. The document governing opt-ins is attached as Appendix B.
- 4. For the 2018-2019 school year, each bargaining unit member shall receive an additional 1.5% on-schedule contribution towards salary. The new rates will be effective, starting with the April 28, 2019 paycheck, for the remaining dates in the 2018-2019 pay schedule and the retro-active pay adjustment shall be given to the employee no later than the April 26, 2019 payroll. The amount of this additional salary contribution is approximately \$22,282.36 (which is inclusive of all fringe benefits). Importantly, this is in addition to 0.5% on-schedule salary increase the District gave each bargaining unit member starting with the first Fiscal Year 18-19 paycheck. The new Salary schedule is included as Appendix A.
- 5. In addition to the foregoing, the parties agree that PESA members shall be paid for the January 20, 2020 Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday, at a cost of \$6,021.82
- 6. The term of this Agreement shall be for two (2) years and end on June 30, 2020.
- 7. The Parties agree to meet before June 30, 2019, to negotiate wages for the 19-20 school year to the extent the District will have the financial wherewithal to increase wages at that time.
- 8. The Parties agree to incorporate the above terms into a new Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 9. This Tentative Agreement is subject to approval/ratification by the PSD Board of Education and the PESA membership.

Charita Jackson-Wright

PESA President

Verj Williams 3-28-19 Williams Date Kelley Williams

Superintendent

Appendix A

Salary Schedule

2018-19

018-19			
Step A	2017-18	2018-19	+1.50%
1	\$12.03	\$12.09	\$12.27
2	\$12.63	\$12.69	\$12.88
3	\$13.27	\$13.33	\$13.53
4	\$13.93	\$14.00	\$14.21
5	\$14.63	\$14.70	\$14.92
6	\$15.36	\$15.43	\$15.66
7	\$16.13	\$16.21	\$16.45
8	\$16.95	\$17.04	\$17.30
12	\$17.81	\$17.90	\$18.17
17	\$18.72	\$18.81	\$19.09
22	\$19.88	\$19.98	\$20.28
26	\$21.09	\$21.20	\$21.52

Step 8	2017-18	2018-19	+1.50%
1	\$12.63	\$12.69	\$12.88
2	\$13.27	\$13.33	\$13.53
3	\$13.93	\$14.00	\$14.21
4	\$14.63	\$14.70	\$14.92
5	\$15.36	\$15.43	\$15.66
6	\$16.13	\$16.21	\$16.45
7	\$16.93	\$17.01	\$17.27
8	\$17.79	\$17.88	\$18.15
12	\$18.70	\$18.79	\$19.07
17	\$19.65	\$19.75	\$20.05
22	\$20.88	\$20.98	\$21.29
26	\$22.15	\$22.26	\$22.59

Step C	2017-18	2018-19	+1.50%
1	\$13.27	\$13.33	\$13.53
2	\$13.93	\$14.00	\$14.21
3	\$14.63	\$14.70	\$14.92
4	\$15.36	\$15.43	\$15.66
5	\$16.13	\$16.21	\$16.45
6	\$16.93	\$17.01	\$17.27
7	\$17.77	\$17.86	\$18.13
8	\$18.68	\$18.77	\$19.05
12	\$19.63	\$19.73	\$20.03
17	\$20.63	\$20.74	\$21.05
22	\$21.92	\$22.03	\$22.36
26	\$23.26	\$23.38	\$23.73

Step D	2017-18	2018-19	+1.50%
1	\$13.93	\$14.00	\$14.21
2	\$14.63	\$14.70	\$14.92
3	\$15.36	\$15.44	\$15.67
4	\$16.13	\$16.21	\$16.45
5	\$16.93	\$17.01	\$17.27
6	\$17.77	\$17.86	\$18.13
7	\$18.66	\$18.75	\$19.03
8	\$19.61	\$19.71	\$20.00
12	\$20.61	\$20.72	\$21.03
17	\$21.67	\$21.78	\$22.11
22	\$23.02	\$23.14	\$23.49
26	\$24.42	\$24.54	\$24.91

Step E	2017-18	2018-19	+1.50%
1	\$15.54	\$15.62	\$15.85
2	\$16.33	\$16.41	\$16.66
3	\$17.14	\$17.22	\$17.48
4	\$17.99	\$18.08	\$18.35
5	\$18.89	\$18.98	\$19.26
6	\$19.84	\$19.94	\$20.24
7	\$20.83	\$20.93	\$21.24
8	\$21.90	\$22.01	\$22.34
12	\$23.01	\$23.13	\$23.48
17	\$24.18	\$24.31	\$24.67
22	\$25.70	\$25.83	\$26.22
26	\$27.26	\$27.40	\$27.81

Appendix B

Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association (PESA)

Pay spread election option for all current employees.

Members,

You have the one-time option to opt in to a 26 pay schedule.

The following conditions apply to this offer.

- 1. You must opt in to be on 26 pays.
- Year-round employees will continue to be paid on the 26 pay schedule, but must make a choice for future possibilities.
- 3. If you do not opt in to receive 26 pays at this time, you forfeit your ability to opt in at a future date.
- 4. If you are a 12 month (26 pay) employee, you must opt in to be eligible for the pay spread if in the future you take a position that works fewer weeks. If you do not opt in now, and later move to a position that works fewer weeks you will not be eligible for the pay spread.
- 5. After opting in, if you opt out at a future date you will no longer be eligible for the 26 pay spread.
- This option is a one-time only option. New employees hired after this agreement is executed will not be eligible for the pay spread.
- If you opt in and later decide to opt out, you will not be eligible for 26 pays in the future unless you work a year-round position.

Please choose from the following

26 pay option

23 pay option

Name (printed)

Signature	Da
orginatoro	

3-14-19 dks edits

APPENDIX C CHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIA Page: HUMAN RESOURCE SYSTEM Run Date/Time: 3/21/19 12:53 PM

1 of 1

Report Id: PERS0044 Run by: pontiacpayrpts

Employee Seniority by Employee Last Name

Union Local Code: %PESA

Employee Name	Union Local Code
ADRAGNA, AILEEN D	PESA
ALEXANDER, TROSIE	PESA
BELL, WILMA J	PESA
BROOKS, SONYA	PESA
BURKETT, DEBRA LYNN	PESA
CARPENTER, ALICIA M	PESA
COLON-CARDENAS, JOCELIN	PESA
COSENTINO, THERESA	PESA
DINKINS-HOWARD, NICHOLE J.	PESA
DOWELL, FERN R	PESA
GUZMAN, CARMEN	PESA
HAYES, CASSANDRA	PESA
HENRY, CONNIE	PESA
JACKSON-WRIGHT, CHARITA L	PESA
JOHNSON, MICHELLE L	PESA
KNIGHT, KELLY	PESA
LEESE, DEBRA J	PESA
MULLEN, KIMBERLY	PESA
PERQUETTE, LUANN	PESA
SMITH, CAROLYN J	PESA
TAYLOR, TANESHA	PESA
THOMAS, BELINDA	PESA
THOMPSON, SHELBY PAIGE	PESA
WILLIAMS, HARRIETT L.	PESA

APPENDIX B - 2022-2023 Lanes D, E, & F Salary Schedule

PESA SALARY SCHEDULE

2022-2023

Lane D	22-23
1	\$ 15.58
2	\$ 16.35
3	\$ 17.16
4	\$ 18.04
5	\$ 18.93
6	\$ 19.87
7	\$ 20.86
8	\$ 21.93
9	\$ 22.22
10	\$ 22.50
11	\$ 22.78
12	\$ 23.06
13	\$ 23.29
14	\$ 23.53
15	\$ 23.76
16	\$ 24.00
17	\$ 24.24
18	\$ 24.54
19	\$ 24.85 \$ 25.14
20	\$ 25.14
21	\$ 25.44
22	\$ 25.75
23	\$ 26.14
24	\$ 26.53
25	\$ 26.92
26	\$ 27.31
27	\$ 27.71
28	\$ 28.13
29	\$ 28.55
30	\$ 28.98

Lane E	22-23
1	\$ 17.37
2	\$ 18.26
3	\$ 19.16 \$ 20.12 \$ 21.13 \$ 22.19
4	\$ 20.12
5	\$ 21.13
6	\$ 22.19
7	Ş Z 3.Z 9
8	\$ 24.49
9	\$ 24.80 \$ 25.11 \$ 25.42
10	\$ 25.11
11	\$ 25.42
12	\$ 25.73 \$ 25.99
13	\$ 25.99
14	\$ 26.25
15	\$ 26.52 \$ 26.78 \$ 27.04 \$ 27.38
16	\$ 26.78
17	\$ 27.04
18	\$ 27.38
19	\$ 27.72
20	\$ 28.06
21	\$ 28.40
22	\$ 28.73
23	\$ 29.18
24	\$ 29.62
25	\$ 30.05
26	\$ 30.49
27	\$ 30.95
28	\$ 31.41
29	\$ 31.88
30	\$ 32.36

Lane F	22-23
1	\$ 19.17
1 2	\$ 20.17
3	\$ 21.15 \$ 22.20
4	\$ 22.20
3 4 5 6 7	\$ 23.29
6	\$ 24.50 \$ 25.71
7	\$ 25.71
8	\$ 27.05
9	\$ 27.40 \$ 27.75
10	\$ 27.75
11	\$ 28.08
12	\$ 28.43
13 14	\$ 28.71 \$ 29.00
14	\$ 29.00
15 16	\$ 29.28 \$ 29.56
16	\$ 29.56
17	\$ 29.85
18	\$ 30.23 \$ 30.61
19	\$ 30.61
20	\$ 30.97
21	\$ 31.35 \$ 31.73
22	
23	\$ 32.21
24	\$ 32.70
25	\$ 33.18
26	\$ 33.66
27	\$ 34.17
28	\$ 34.68
29	\$ 35.20
30	\$ 35.73

*Effective 10/31/22

APPENDIX C – 2022-2023 Lane G Salary Schedule

LANE G - 226 days:

Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, Benefits Coordinator

2022-2023

STEP	ANNUAL
1	\$63,336.77
2	\$64,919.59
3	\$66,542.34
4	\$68,206.09
5	\$69,911.87
6	\$71,659.69
7	\$73 <i>,</i> 450.61
8	\$75,286.71
9	\$77,169.06
10	\$79,098.71
11	\$81,075.65
12	\$83,058.90
13	\$85,180.88
14	\$87,310.22
15	\$89,493.16
16	\$91,729.70
17	\$94,023.00

APPENDIX D - November 7, 2022 LOA – Summer School Assignment(s)

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC BOARD OF EDUCATION AND THE

PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION

LETTER OF AGREEMENT - Summer School Assignment(s)

November 7, 2022

- Item 1 The Board will identify all summer school sites no later than June 1st of each school year.
- Item 2 Less than 52 week secretaries at the summer school sites will be offered summer school positions based on seniority.
- Item 3 Secretaries at the summer school sites will accept a summer school position on a voluntary basis.
- Item 4 If all less than 52- w e e k school secretaries at the summer school sites are not interested, the Board will send out notices of summer school assignments to all secretaries in the bargaining unit.
- Item 5 Summer school positions will be staffed in seniority order, providing the secretary possess the minimum 'ready' skills for the assignment.
- Item 6 The pay will be at a rate not less than classification 'D'.
- Item 7 A 52-week secretary already at the summer school site shall not assume the summer school responsibilities.

WHEREFORE, the Parties have agreed to the terms and conditions recited herein and acknowledge the same by executing below.

Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association: Pontiac School District

ackson-Wright 12/12/2022

Charita Jackson-Wright PESA President

Date

Y'londa Kollum

12/08/2022

Y'londa Kellum Date Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

APPENDIX E - November 7, 2022 LOA – Temporary Summer Work Assignment

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC BOARD OF EDUCATION AND THE

PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION

LETTER OF AGREEMENT - Temporary Summer Work Assignment

November 7, 2022

- Item 1 Temporary summer work assignments may be available to secretaries currently in a short-year assignment.
- Item2 Letters of interest for temporary summer work assignments must be sent to the Personnel Office each year by May 1st.
- Item 3 Notices announcing temporary summer work assignments shall be made available to the Association by May 1, or immediately as known thereafter.
- Item 4 Temporary summer work assignments will be staffed in seniority order providing the secretary possess the minimum 'ready' skills for the assignment.
- Item 5 Temporary summer work assignments will be assigned on an equitable rotating basis.
- Item 6 A secretary may elect to decline an assignment and remain on the list for consideration for the next assignment.
- Item 7 Temporary summer work assignments will be paid at the substitute secretarial rate.
- Item 8 Secretaries awarded the temporary summer work assignment will be expected to work the required number of days.
- Item 9 Contractual sick leave, vacation days, and paid holidays may not be used during the temporary work assignment.

WHEREFORE, the Parties have agreed to the terms and conditions recited herein and acknowledge the same by executing below.

Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association:

Pontiac School District

ackson-Wright 12/12/2022 arita on-Wright (De

Charita Jackson-Wright PESA President Date

<u>Y'londa Kellum</u> ('londa Kellum (Dec 8, 2022 16:07 EST)

12/08/2022

Y'londa Kellum Date Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

APPENDIX F - November 7, 2022 LOA – HR & Business Office PESA Positions

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC BOARD OF EDUCATION AND THE

PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION LETTER OF AGREEMENT – HR & Business Office PESA Positions November 7, 2022

The Membership Benefits, Accounts Payable, and Accounts Receivable employees are as follows: Michael Emerson, Marvin Phillips, and Angela Bolton.

For the duration of their employment in these positions, the named employees shall have their pay and benefits governed by whichever is greater: bargained PESA increases, or the increases given by PS district to non-contract central office employees.

This LOA shall run for each employee mentioned above independently.

Once a position is vacated by the above-named employees, all future pay and benefits shall be subject to PESA bargaining only.

WHEREFORE, THE Parties have agreed to the terms and conditions recited herein and acknowledge the same by executing below.

Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association: Pontiac School District

Date

2022 07:50 EST)

Charita Jackson-Wright PESA President <u>Y'londa Kellum</u> Y'londa Kellum (Dec 8, 2022 16:0' 12/08/2022

Y'londa Kellum Date Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

56

APPENDIX G - November 7, 2022 LOU – Ratification Bonus

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN THE

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION

November 7, 2022

The School District of the City of Pontiac (the "District") and the Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association ("PESA") have entered into this Letter of Understanding regarding a calendar change.

This **LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING** ("LOU") made this 7th day of November 2022 by and between the Pontiac School District ("PSD") and the Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association ("PESA") referred hereinafter collectively as the "Parties") is made pursuant to the following terms and conditions:

WHEREAS, the Parties are seeking to reach and ratify a successor collective bargaining agreement;

WHEREAS, the Parties have mutually agreed upon a lump sum ratification bonus payable pursuant to the terms set forth below;

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to by and between the parties as follows:

1. After the first full payroll period following the ratification by both Parties of the Tentative Agreement PESA members employed at the time of ratification and the time of payment of the ratification bonus shall be eligible for a lump sum payment in the amount of \$300 that will be subject to all applicable deductions as required by local, state and federal law.

WHEREFORE, THE Parties have agreed to the terms and conditions recited herein and acknowledge the same by executing below.

Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association:

Pontiac School District

ackson-Wright 12/12/2022

Charita Jackson-Wright PESA President Date

<u>Y'londa Kellum</u> Y'londa Kellum (Dec 8, 2022 16:07 EST)

12/08/2022

Y'londa Kellum Date
Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

APPENDIX H - November 7, 2022 LOU – District Positions Inclusion in PESA

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN THE

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF PONTIAC BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

PONTIAC EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION

November 7, 2022

The School District of the City of Pontiac (the "District") and the Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association ("PESA") have entered into this Letter of Understanding regarding certain District positions and their inclusion in the bargaining unit.

This **LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING** ("LOU") made this 7th day of November 2022 by and between the Pontiac School District ("PSD") and the Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association ("PESA") (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the Parties") is made pursuant to the following terms and conditions:

WHEREAS, PSD and PESA entered into a Letter of Agreement on June 14, 2010. (Attached.)

WHEREAS, pursuant to said Letter of Agreement, PESA filed a grievance seeking inclusion of certain positions in the bargaining unit.

WHEREAS, the grievance was advanced to arbitration pursuant to the established grievance procedures of the PSD/PESA Collective Bargaining Agreement then in effect.

WHEREAS, ultimately, the arbitrator entered an Award granting PESA's grievance, placing three positions in the District's Human Resources Department into PESA's bargaining unit.

WHEREAS, PSD appealed the Award to the Oakland County Circuit Court, and the Court found in favor of PESA.

WHEREAS, PSD then sought an appeal of right to the Michigan Court of Appeals, which is currently pending.

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the arbitration award, the parties have bargained the issue and have come to an agreement regarding any and all positions referenced in the 2010 Letter of Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Recognition Clause of the Parties' 2022-2024 CBA contains the parties' agreement as to the positions referenced in the 2010 Letter of Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to by and between the Parties as follows:

- 1. Upon execution of this Agreement, PSD will withdraw its Claim of Appeal pending before the Michigan Court of Appeals with prejudice.
- 2. One position in the District Human Resources Department (the Employee Benefits Coordinator position), and two positions in the District's Business Office (the Accounts Receivable position and Accounts Payable position) shall be bargaining unit positions, as set forth in the Recognition Clause.

- 3. PESA shall waive its ability to seek inclusion of any other positions referenced in the 2010 Letter of Agreement in the unit, pursuant to that Agreement or the arbitration award dated November 16, 2021. PESA retains the right to seek these positions through bargaining.
- 4. This LOU shall dispose of all claims and grievances between the Parties which were brought or could have been brought in the grievance and arbitration proceedings directly related to the attached 2010 Letter of Agreement.

WHEREFORE, the Parties have agreed to the terms and conditions recited herein and acknowledge the same by executing below.

Pontiac Educational Secretaries Association:

Pontiac School District:

Charita Jackson-Wright 12/12/2022

Charita Jackson-Wright PESA President

Date

Y'londa Kollum Kellum (Dec 8, 2022 16:07 EST)

12/08/2022

Y'londa Kellum Date Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

Letter of Agreement Between Pontiac Schools And Pontiac Educational Secretary Association

For this letter to be effective it will need the approval of the secretarial membership and the board of education.

The school district will remove from the bargaining unit seven (7) positions working for human resources and finance. The Association will allow the creation of one (1) more executive secretary reporting directly to the director human resources.

The district agrees that these positions will not be staffed but that the work usually done by these positions will be sent to an outside agency to be processed. If, in the future, it is determined that these positions need to come back to Pontiac the district agrees that they will be bargaining unit positions and will be posted and filled following the PESA contract language.

The PESA members being displaced from the human resources and finance departments will meet with management and PESA leadership to claim known vacancies which will become available between July 1 and September 1, 2010.

The displaced persons will remain whole (salary and benefits) during the summer of 2010 no matter when they vacate their current positions. It is expected that these changes will occur between July1 and September 1, 2010.

The administration will recommend that the signing of this agreement should satisfy the RFP as stated in the debt reduction plan submitted to the state.

Dr. Jumanne Sledge

Associate Superintendent

6/14/10 Date

Marcia Redmond

President PESA

6/14/2010